
Mark Saccoccio  
Town Clerk  

  01525 631920 
      info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk 

 www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk 

 

 

 
Astral Park Sports & Community Centre, Johnson Drive, Leighton Buzzard, LU7 4AY 

18 June 2021 
 
To:  The Town Mayor and all Members of Leighton-Linslade Town Council 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING 

 
You are hereby summoned to attend a meeting of Leighton-Linslade Town Council to 

be held on Monday, 28 June 2021 commencing at 7.30 pm in the Astral Park Sports 

& Community Centre, Johnson Drive, Leighton Buzzard, LU7 4AY. 

                     THIS MEETING MAY 
                           BE RECORDED* 

M Saccoccio 
Town Clerk 

 
Please do not attend this meeting if: 

 You, anyone you live with or anyone in your support bubble has tested positive 

for Covid-19 or has symptoms of Covid-19. 

 You have been advised to self-isolate by NHS Test and Trace, the NHS pp or for 

any other reason. 

 You are within the required quarantine period having returned to the UK from a 

non-exempt country. 

 
 
 

Prayers will be said at 1920 hours 

AGENDA 
 

1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 

 (a) Schedule 12 of the Local Government Act 1972 requires a record be kept 
of the Members present and that this record form part of the minutes of 
the meeting. Members who cannot attend a meeting should tender 
apologies to the Town Clerk. 

(b) To consider a request for a leave of absence for Councillor B Spurr for 
health reasons.  

 

2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 

 (i) Under the Localism Act 2011 (sections 26-37 and Schedule 4) and in 
accordance with the Council’s Code of Conduct, Members are required to 
declare any interests which are not currently entered in the Member’s 
Register of Interests or if he/she has not notified the Monitoring Officer of it.  

Please do not attend this meeting if: 

 You, anyone you live with or anyone in your support bubble has tested positive 

for Covid-19 or has symptoms of Covid-19. 

 You have been advised to self-isolate by NHS Test and Trace, the NHS pp or 

for any other reason. 

 You are within the required quarantine period having returned to the UK from a 

non-exempt country. 

 

THIS MEETING MAY 

BE RECORDED* 

Public Document Pack

mailto:info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk
http://www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk/


LEIGHTON-LINSLADE TOWN COUNCIL Monday, 28 June 2021 
 

 

 

 
(ii) Should any Member have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in an item on 

the agenda, the Member may not participate in consideration of that item 
unless a Dispensation has first been requested (in writing) and granted by 
the Council (see Dispensation Procedure). 

 

3.   TOWN MAYOR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS  

 

4.   LEADERS' ANNOUNCEMENTS  

 

5.   QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC  

 

 (a) To receive questions and statements from members of the public as 
provided for in Standing Order Nos.3 (f) and 3 (g)   

 
Members of the public are very welcome to attend the meeting but are 
asked to note that attendance numbers must be limited to mitigate for 
Covid-19 risks.  Please contact us to advise if you wish to attend before 
4pm on the day of the meeting.  Written representations may also be 
submitted before 4pm on the day of the meeting 
 
 

6.   MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 1 - 18) 

 

 (a) To receive and approve as a correct record the minutes of the Council 

meetings held on 26 April 2021 and on 4 May 2021 (attached) in 

accordance with Standing Order 12.  

(b) To receive information updates on matters arising from the previous 

meetings (if appropriate). 

 

7.   ANNUAL GOVERNANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY RETURN 2020-21 (Pages 

19 - 26) 

 

 a) As presented to the Policy & Finance Committee on 21 June, to receive a 
report regarding the end of year accounts for 2020-2021 (attached) and to 
consider the recommendations contained therein. 
 
b) As presented to the Policy & Finance Committee on 21 June, to consider 
approval of Section 1 of the Annual Governance and Accountability Return (the 
annual governance statement for 2020-2021) (attached). 
 
c) As presented to the Policy & Finance Committee on 21 June, to consider 
approval of Section 2 of the Annual Governance and Accountability Return (the 
accounting statements for year ended 31 March 2021) (attached). 
 

8.   APPROVED DECISIONS 5 MAY - 27 JUNE 2021 (Pages 27 - 28) 

 

 To formally note decisions made in the period 5 May – 27 June 2021 through 

Members of the public are very welcome to attend the meeting but are asked to 
note that attendance numbers must be limited to mitigate for Covid-19 risks. 
Please contact us to advise if you wish to attend before 4pm on the day of the 
meeting. Written representations may also be submitted before 4pm on the day 
of the meeting. 



LEIGHTON-LINSLADE TOWN COUNCIL Monday, 28 June 2021 
 

 

 

the agreed procedure of delegated authority to the Town Clerk with email 
approval from at least a quorum of Members of the Council (attached). 
 

9.   I.T. EXPENDITURE (Pages 29 - 30) 

 

 To receive a report regarding I.T. expenditure (attached) and to consider the 
recommendations contained therein.  
 

10.   COMMITTEES (Pages 31 - 32) 

 

 a) To agree the size, political representation, membership and Chairmanship 
of Town Council standing Committees for the municipal year 2021-2022. 

 
b) To agree the five Town Council Members to be appointed to the Leighton-

Linslade Partnership (joint) Committee for 2021-2022 (Chairman to be 
appointed by the Committee at its first meeting).  

 

11.   APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES (Pages 33 - 34) 

 

 To agree Councillor representatives to outside bodies including those receiving 
ongoing grant funding from the Town Council, for the municipal year 2021-
2022.  
           

12.   QUESTIONS FROM COUNCILLORS  

 

 To receive questions from Councillors as provided for in Standing Order 
No.271, provided three clear days’ notice of the question has been given to the 
person to whom it is addressed. 
 

13.   TOWN CENTRE CAR PARKING  

 

 To consider the following Motion submitted by Councillor R Goodchild:  
 
a). In furthering its commitment to the improvement and enhancement of the 
High Street retail experience and to aid the economic development of same, 
this Council requests the Town Clerk to instigate talks with Central 
Bedfordshire Council to provide the groundwork for a future agreement to 
enable free parking in all the town centre car parks for a trial period of three 
months. 
 
b). The Town Clerk is further requested to ascertain the likely costs in the 
provision of said agreement including an accurate assessment any 
consequential loss of parking fee revenue by Central Bedfordshire Council that 
would have to be underwritten by Leighton-Linslade Town Council and bring a 
report to the meeting of Policy & Finance Committee scheduled for 26th July 
2021.  

                                            
1 a Councillor may seek an answer to a question concerning any business of the Council provided 3 clear working days notice of the 

question has been given to the Proper Officer.   



LEIGHTON-LINSLADE TOWN COUNCIL Monday, 28 June 2021 
 

 

 

 

14.   TOWN CENTRE  

 

 To consider the following Motion submitted by Councillor S Owen and 
seconded by Councillor R Goodchild: 
 
That this Council, recognising the changes in retail shopping habits that have 
gathered pace during the pandemic, resolves to organise a Members 
Workshop, led by suitable retail shopping consultants, with a view to revising 
the Town Council's strategic aims for town centre shopping. The Council asks 
the Town Clerk to report to an early meeting of the Partnership Committee (or 
Policy & Finance Committee) on this matter, to discuss with CBC 
colleagues whether they would wish to participate, and on whether at this stage 
representatives of town centre shops should be invited to attend. 
 

15.   EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC  

 

 The Council may consider it appropriate to consider the following resolution 
should they consider that any discussion would be prejudicial to the public 
interests: that, under the Public Bodies (Admissions to Meetings) Act 
1960, the public be excluded on the grounds of the confidential nature of 
the business about to be transacted which involves the likely disclosure 
of exempt information. The public and press to withdraw from the 
meeting during consideration of detailed discussion regarding:    
 

16.   CONTRACTOR UPDATE (Pages 35 - 42) 

 

 To provide an update on town centre lighting project (attached). 
 

17.   PUBLIC CONVENIENCES CLEANING CONTRACT/TENDER (Pages 43 - 46) 

 



 

Page 93 

LEIGHTON–LINSLADE TOWN COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES OF COUNCIL MEETING 
 

26 APRIL 2021 AT 1930 HOURS 
 

Present:   Councillors   A Dodwell  
  C Palmer 
  G Perham 
  D Bowater  
  K Cursons  
  J M Freeman 
  F Kharawala (Chair) 
  S Jones 
  R Berry 
  V Harvey 
  S Hemmings 
  S Owen 
  P Snelling 
  A Gray 
  R Goodchild 
  J Silverstone 
  T Morris 
  D Scott 
  R Yates 
         

Also in attendance: M Saccoccio (Town Clerk) 
 S Sandiford (Head of Democratic and Central 

Services/Deputy Town Clerk)  
 Ian Haynes, (Head of Grounds and 

Environmental Services)  
 M Jahn (Committee Officer) 
    
Members of the Public:  3 

        
 

 189    APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

 Apologies for absence had been received from Councillor B Spurr.  
 

   190     DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 

   Councillor C Palmer declared a personal interest as a volunteer with the Friends 
of Leighton-Linslade in Bloom.  Councillor Harvey also declared an interest as a 
member of South Bedfordshire Friends of the Earth and Councillor Dodwell 
declared an interest as a member of Bedfordshire Police and Crime Panel. 

  
  No disclosable pecuniary interests were declared and no dispensations were 

requested. 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 6



Council Meeting                                                         26 APRIL 2021 
 

                                                                                                                   Page  94 

191 TOWN MAYOR’S ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 

 Councillor F Kharawala gave thanks to all who assisted in putting together and 
attending the Civic Service in February with special thanks to All Saints Church for 
their assistance and participation.   

 
 In March some free events were held online under the banner “Mindful March”, 

which offered the opportunity to engage with wellbeing workshops to help with 
loneliness and isolation at this time.  A second on-line Pamper night was also held 
which was well received. 

 
 In April the Mayor attended the commemorative service held after the passing of 

the Duke of Edinburgh which was a very poignant moment and gave time to think 
of the Royal Family and to reflect on how covid-19 had affected people. 

 
 The Mayor and the Town Clerk attended the Leighton Buzzard Society Annual 

General Meeting, which gave an opportunity to meet and talk to another group 
formed for the betterment of the community and Parish and see the work they do. 

 
 Going forward it was hard to know what events would be able to happen and if 

people would feel confident enough to attend but when they recommence, the 
Mayor hoped that Members would support her in her charity fundraising activities. 

 
192  LEADERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 

 Councillor S Jones, Leader of the Conservative Group, spoke and gave thanks to 
the officers at the Town Council especially with the problems encountered with the 
uncertainty of whether virtual meetings would continue or would return to face-to-
face.  Also thanks were given to the members of the Standing Orders Task and 
Finish Group and officers for the amendments made to the Standing Orders which 
provided an improved set to work with. 

 
 Councillor R Goodchild, Leader of the Liberal Democrats, spoke and gave thanks 

to Councillor Jones and all groups within the Council with their co-operation in 
addressing policing matters, the spirit of co-operation had been well received and 
actual progress had been made by working together.  It was noted that a meeting 
should be called for the Health Services Task and Finish Group to keep this subject 
under review. 

 
193 QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC  
 

A member of the public and shop owner spoke to support the improvement of the 
High Street which would be discussed later in the agenda.  This was the time to 
look at what was needed to enhance the area and the retailers would be happy 
to have an input through consultation. 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 2



Council Meeting                                                         26 APRIL 2021 
 

                                                                                                                   Page  95 

194    MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS  
 

(a) Council received the draft minutes of the Council meetings held on 25 
January and 1 February 2021. 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the Council meetings held on 25 January and 
1 February 2021 be approved as a correct record and would be signed at a 
later date, when safe to do so. 
 
(b)  No updates were given but any issues would be dealt with as needed 
through the agenda. 

195    INSPIRING MUSIC TIME MACHINE PROJECT  
 
 In February 2020 Council approved a financial contribution of £2,266.25 (a 50% 

contribution) for the Time Machine project, which had been due to be delivered in 
Autumn 2020.  This was delayed due to Covid-19 and now approval was sought 
from Council for the funds, which had been ringfenced by Central Bedfordshire 
Council, to support the delivery of the project in 2021-2022. 

 
 RESOLVED to approve the ringfencing of £2,266.25 contribution                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                            

by Central Bedfordshire Council to support delivery of the Time Machine 
Project in 2021-22. 

  
196 PROPOSED CHANGES TO STANDING ORDERS   
 
 Council considered a recommendation by the Policy and Finance Committee of 

29 March 2021 to proposed changes to Town Council Standing Orders (in 
accordance with SO 26b, once proposed and seconded, any amendments will 
stand adjourned without discussion until the next ordinary meeting of the Council). 

 
 It was proposed by Councillor S Jones and seconded by Councillor M Freeman 

that the changes be adopted. This would now stand adjourned until the next 
ordinary meeting of the Council.  

 
197 FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL PLAN 
 

Further to the recommendation made by the Policy and Finance Committee on 22 
February 2021, Council considered the most recent position in respects of the Five 
Year Financial Plan and the projects identified within it. 
 
A request was made for further information on the rules and regulations regarding 
a Public Work Loan and whether other projects in the Five Year Plan would be 
suitable for this type of loan. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
(a) To endorse the most recent iteration of the 5 Year Financial Plan. 

 

Page 3



Council Meeting                                                         26 APRIL 2021 
 

                                                                                                                   Page  96 

(b) To endorse the request made by the Cultural & Economic Services 
Committee at its meeting held 7th December 2020 that £50,000 be included 
within the 5 Year Financial Plan for the financial period 2021-22 for the 
purposes of older persons projects to include: 
(i) Digital inclusion 
(ii) Directory/information hub 
(iii) Older Persons Visual Identity – branding of work 
(iv) Direct support of local activity groups 
 

(c) To approve that a total of £50,000 as identified with the 5 Year Financial 
Plan for the financial period 2021-22 and 2022-23 be endorsed for the 
purposes of providing dedicated provision for young person’s activities 
within the parish. 
 

(d) That the anticipated budget of £50,000 as agreed by Council at its meeting 
held 24th June 2019 for the purposes of installing drinking water fountains 
within town council parks be reduced to £25,000 based on more detailed 
scoping work undertaken by officers since the resolution made by 
Council. 

198 PARSON’S CLOSE INCLUSIVE ADVENTURE PLAY AREA 
 
 Council considered a recommendation from Policy & Finance Committee on 19 

April to approve the submission of an application to the United Kingdom Debt 
Management Office for a Public Work Loan for the delivery of an inclusive 
adventure playground for Parson’s Close Recreation Ground and for the 
submission of a planning application to Central Bedfordshire Council. 

 
 Members agreed this would be an excellent provision and one question was raised 

regarding the delay between delivery and starting of works.  It was confirmed this 
would allow time for public consultation and for the start date to be delayed until 
the end of the summer holidays, without causing too much disruption avoiding the 
busy time of the year and inclement weather conditions. 

 
 RESOLVED:  
 

(a) To note the report 
(b) To endorse the recommendation made by Policy & Finance Committee at 

its meeting held 19 April 29021 to approve the submission of a £300,000 
application to the United Kingdom Debt Management Office for a Public 
Work Loan. 

(c) To approve the submission of a planning application to Central 
Bedfordshire Council for elements of the scheme which fall outside the 
permitted development definition. 

 
199 CALENDAR OF MEETINGS 2021-2022 
 
 Council received and considered a report to seek approval on the direction on 

meetings for the municipal year 2021-22.   The report covered all eventualities 

Page 4



Council Meeting                                                         26 APRIL 2021 
 

                                                                                                                   Page  97 

depending on the expected High Court ruling on whether remote meetings would 
be lawful from the 7 May 2021 in accordance with the Local Government Act 1972. 

 
 A decision-making process was in place with delegated authority to the Proper 

Officer if meetings could not take place remotely.  Decisions would be based on 
councillor feedback by email. It was agreed that all Councillors could be copied in 
when decisions were requested and that remote meetings could be held for 
informal discussions. 

 
 A question was asked whether the Health Services Task and Finish Group would 

reconvene as no meetings were listed on the proposed Calendar of Meetings.  It 
was confirmed a meeting would be scheduled in June but no firm date had yet 
been set. 

 
 With regard to resuming face to face meetings, this would be dependent upon the 

Council’s ability to meet any Covid guidelines to mitigate risks for all involved. Face 
to face meetings would not resume before 21 June at the earliest and would be 
dependent upon several factors including prior Council approval of a risk 
assessment. A question was raised whether investigations had been made into 
appropriate alternative premises to hold meetings and whether a Track and Trace 
system would have to be set up when in the position to do this. All options were 
being explored but the updated Government guidance, expected prior to 21 June, 
would be instrumental in setting out what arrangements would need to be in place. 

 
 In addition to the recommendations it was proposed that Standing Order 3a be 

suspended to allow Council meetings to take place at premises other than the 
White House, as this was likely to be necessary to allow for social distancing and 
other Covid mitigation measures.  

 
 RESOLVED: 
 

(i) To note the report 
 

(ii) To endorse that the Annual Council Meeting be moved from Monday 
17 May to Tuesday 4 May to allow it to be held remotely in accordance 
with The Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus) 
(Flexibility of Local Authority and Police and Crime Panel Meetings) 
(England and Wales) Regulations 2020. 
 

(iii) To endorse the proposed Calendar of Meetings for 2021-22 with the 
following arrangements in place: 

 
(a) Meetings scheduled from 7 May 2021 – 21 June 2021 will be held 
remotely, if the High Court action being taken on 21 April 2021 (with 
Government support) finds that remote meetings are lawful in 
accordance with the Local Government Act 1972.  
 
(b) If the High Court decision is not in favour of the continuation of 
remote meetings or until such time as a decision has been published, 
meetings scheduled from 7 May 2021 – 21 June 2021 will be cancelled. 

Page 5



Council Meeting                                                         26 APRIL 2021 
 

                                                                                                                   Page  98 

Decision making will be delegated with councillor email approval in 
line with the procedure resolved by Council on 20 March 2020. Such 
authority will be further underpinned by the approval of revised 
Standing Orders which set out delegated authority arrangements at 
SO 15 (c) (vii).  

 
(c) It may be possible to hold meetings after 21 June 2021 in person, 
subject to: 
 
- the Council having approved an appropriate risk assessment which 
incorporates Government guidance in respect of Covid-19 and takes 
into account its duty of care to councillors, officers and the public. 
- an appropriate venue is available. 
- any measures required by said risk assessment can be implemented 
by this time. 
- appropriate arrangements in respect of members of the public can 
be put in place.   

 
(d) Should the steps at (c) not be achieved by 21 June 2021, 
meetings and decision making will continue as set out at a) or b) (as 
applicable) until such time as those conditions can be met. 

 
(iv) That Council note and endorse that in the event of any further changes 

to Government guidance which prevent face to face Council meetings 
taking place (e.g. in autumn/winter 2021), that arrangements as set out 
at (a) or (b) (as applicable) will be implemented until such time as 
formal meetings can be resumed.  
 

(v) That Standing Order 3a be suspended until further notice to allow for 
Council meetings to be held in a venue other than the White House, 
should this be necessary.  

200 ANNUAL REPORT  
 

Council received a recommendation from the Policy & Finance Committee on 19 
April 2021 to consider approval of the amended Annual Report for 2020-21. The 
financial information would be added once year end accounts had been approved 
by Council in June.   

 
 RESOLVED to approve the Annual Report for 2020-21 (financial details to be 

added following completion of year end accounting statements). 
 

201 OPERATION DODFORD 2021-2022 
 
 Council received a recommendation from Community Safety Sub Committee on 

12 April 2021 to approve the Operation Dodford agreement with Bedfordshire 
Police for the period 1 April 2021 – 31 March 2022. 

 
 On being proposed and seconded, the recommendation to approve the service 

level agreement was unanimously agreed.  

Page 6



Council Meeting                                                         26 APRIL 2021 
 

                                                                                                                   Page  99 

 
 RESOLVED to approve the Operation Dodford Service Level Agreement with 

Bedfordshire Police for 2021-2022, to be signed by two Councillors in 
accordance with Standing Order 14.  

  
202 COMMITTEE MINUTES 
 

(i) Council received the minutes of the Committee meetings held since January 
2021. 
 
RESOLVED to receive the minutes of the Committee meetings held between 
19 January 2021 – 21 April 2021. 
 

(a) Planning & Transport Committee      27 January 2021 
(b) Partnership Committee                 4 February 2021 
(c) Planning & Transport Committee      17 February 2021 
(d) Policy & Finance Committee                 22 February 2021 
(e)       Cultural & Economic Committee      1 March 2021 
(f)        Grounds & Environmental Committee 8 March 2021 
(g)       Planning & Transport Committee      10 March 2021 
(h)       Policy & Finance Committee                 29 March 2021 
(i)        Planning & Transport Committee         31 March 2021 
(j)       Policy & Finance Committee      19 April 2021  

 
(ii) Council gave consideration to the recommendations contained within 
committee minutes which had not already been dealt with as specific agenda 
items. 

Policy & Finance Committee 22 February 2021 - minute reference 200/PF 
Investment Strategy. 
 
RESOLVED to re-adopt the Town Council’s Investment Strategy. 
 
Planning & Transport Committee 10 March 2021 - minute reference 180/P 
Temporary High Street Pedestrianisation. 
 
RESOLVED that a formal response to Central Bedfordshire Council on the 
future of the High Street from March 2022 be considered at an Autumn 2021 
meeting of the Council.  
 
 
Policy & Finance Committee 29 March 2021 - minute reference 214/PF Third 
Party Funding.  
 
RESOLVED to adopt the Third Party Funding/Use of Assets Protocol.  
 
Minute reference 216/PF Budget Underspend. 
 

Page 7



Council Meeting                                                         26 APRIL 2021 
 

                                                                                                                   Page  100 

RESOLVED to carry forward underspend of £2,000 from Buzzard Trails 
(4509/101) to earmarked reserve (9018/970) to fund annual maintenance to 
the Children’s Trail. 

 
Policy & Finance Committee 19 April 2021:  
Minute reference 225/PF Annual Governance Review (Financial Regulations and 
Internal Controls):   
 
RESOLVED:  
 
(a) That minor amendments to the Town Council’s credit card procedure as 

set out be endorsed. 
(b) To endorse minor amendments to Standing Orders to fairly reflect Brexit 

transitional advertising of contract arrangement as set out. 
(c) To endorse minor amendments to Financial Regulations to fairly reflect 

Brexit transitional advertising of contracts arrangements as set out. 
 

Minute reference 226/PF Health and Safety Policy: 
 

RESOLVED to endorse the Town Council’s Health and Safety Policy which 
had been subject to its annual review. 
 
Minute reference 227/PF Lone Working Policy: 
 
RESOLVED to endorse the Town Council’s Lone Working Policy which had 
been subject to review. 
 
Minute reference 229/PF Complaints Procedure: 
 
RESOLVED to approve the proposed revised Complaints Procedure. 
 
Minute reference 230/PF Freedom of Information Policy: 
 
RESOLVED to approve minor amendments to the Freedom of Information 
Policy. 
 
(iii) A question was raised regarding the Architectural Lighting project in the High 
Street.  It was confirmed that all installation would be carried out with supervision 
with the minimum risk to existing trees.  The situation was on-going, and a full 
update would be available in due course. 

  The meeting was adjourned for a five-minute break at 9.04 pm and resumed at 
9.09 pm. 

 
203     GOVERNMENT WELCOME BACK FUND  

 

(a) Council received a verbal update in respect of the Government’s Welcome 
Back Fund to boost the look and feel of the high street.  The project had been 
unveiled by Central Bedfordshire Council but formal communication to the Town 
Council was awaited. Once this detail had been received it was proposed to hold 

Page 8



Council Meeting                                                         26 APRIL 2021 
 

                                                                                                                   Page  101 

a workshop for Councillors to produce revenue led projects to take back to Central 
Bedfordshire Council. 

Members agreed a workshop would be a good opportunity to form ideas which 
could re-invigorate the High Street in the short and long term. Until official 
notification had been received it was decided to defer discussion to the Annual 
Council Meeting on 4 May 2021 and contact CBC to request the facts and figures 
of the Fund be provided to the Town Council for inclusion on this agenda. 

 
(b) Council gave consideration to the recommendation made by the Partnership 
Committee at its meeting held 15 April 2021 that the Town Council expedite 
discussions regarding the Welcome Back Fund.   

RESOLVED to carry this forward to the Annual Meeting on 4 May, when it 
was anticipated that a formal approach would have been made to the Town 
Council by Central Bedfordshire Council and a workshop for discussion of 
ideas could be agreed. 
 
(c) Council received two motions from Councillor Harvey: one regarding the 
Public Realm: High Street and the other Greening in the High Street. 

The first proposal being the provision of benches in the High Street to benefit the 
frail and disabled whilst shopping thus making the High Street more accessible 
and attractive to shoppers. 
 
Members were supportive of this idea but suggested this should be discussed 
once the specific terms and conditions of the Welcome Back Fund were known 
and the discussion workshop was held.  This amendment was proposed and 
seconded and on being taken to the vote there were 13 in favour, 5 abstentions 
and 2 against.  The amendment was carried. 
 
RESOLVED to discuss the Motion proposed by Councillor Harvey regarding 
benches in the High Street as part of the workshop session at which ideas 
for use of the Government Welcome Bank Fund would be discussed. 
 
The second proposal was greening in the High Street with the introduction of 
planters, trees and shrubs. After discussion Councillor Harvey agreed to change 
the recommendation to discuss this further once information had been received 
from Central Bedfordshire Council.  One important question was raised regarding 
the planting of trees which could not compromise the location and sight of the new 
CCTV camera system.  The amendment was proposed and seconded and 
approved unanimously. 
 
RESOLVED to discuss the Motion proposed by Councillor Harvey regarding 
greening in the High Street as part of the workshop session at which ideas 
for use of the Government Welcome Bank Fund would be discussed. 

 
204 QUESTIONS FROM COUNCILLORS  
 
 No official questions had been received from Councillors. 
 

Page 9



Council Meeting                                                         26 APRIL 2021 
 

                                                                                                                   Page  102 

205 REAR BOUNDARY OF LINSLADE MEMORIAL PLAYING FIELD 
 
 The Council received a report and was asked to consider options available in 

respect of a boundary fence with disputed ownership.  
 

RESOLVED to suspend Standing Order 3(x) until conclusion of agenda item 
17 (Rear boundary of Linslade Memorial Playing Field). 

An addition to the recommendations was suggested that the Council seek 
indemnity from the Canal & River Trust and confirmation from the insurers 
regarding removal of the fence to protect ourselves. On being proposed and 
seconded the amended recommendations were taken to the vote with 16 for, and 
3 against. 

  
RESOLVED:  
 
(a) To note the report. 
(b) That the Council funds the removal of the dilapidated rear boundary fence 

between Linslade Memorial Playing Field and the Grand Union canal and 
installs signage to inform park users that they are leaving the park and 
entering land owned by the Canal & River Trust, to a maximum cost of 
£10,000 to be funded from general reserves, subject to an indemnity 
being received from the Canal & River Trust as well as confirmation from 
the Town Council’s insurers that the town council would not be liable for 
any damage caused by removal of the remains of the fence.  

 
The meeting closed 2204 hours.  
 
I HEREBY CONFIRM THAT THE FOREGOING IS A CORRECT AND ACCURATE 
RECORD OF THE MEETING HELD ON  26 APRIL  2021. 
 
 
 
 
Chair                                    28 JUNE 2021  

Page 10



 

Page 103 

LEIGHTON–LINSLADE TOWN COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES OF COUNCIL MEETING 
 

4 MAY 2021 AT 1930 HOURS 
 

Present:   Councillors   A Dodwell  
  C Palmer 
  G Perham 
  D Bowater  
  K Cursons  
  J M Freeman 
  F Kharawala (Chair) 
  S Jones 
  R Berry 
  V Harvey 
  S Hemmings 
  S Owen 
  P Snelling 
  A Gray 
  R Goodchild 
  J Silverstone 
  T Morris 
  D Scott 
  R Yates 
         

Also in attendance: M Saccoccio (Town Clerk) 
 S Sandiford (Head of Democratic and Central 

Services/Deputy Town Clerk)  
   
Members of the Public:   2 

        
 
206   ELECTION OF CHAIR (TOWN MAYOR) 

 
It was proposed and seconded that Councillor  F Kharawala be appointed Chairman 
(Town Mayor) of the Town Council for the municipal year 2021-2022.  There were 
no further nominations. 
 
RESOLVED to appoint Councillor F Kharawala Chairman (Town Mayor) of 
Leighton-Linslade Town Council for the municipal year 2021-2022. 
 

   207   DECLARATIONS OF ACCEPTANCE 
 

Councillor F Kharawala made the statutory declaration of acceptance of office of 
Town Mayor for the municipal year 2021-2022.  
 
 
 
 

Page 11



Council Meeting                                                         4 MAY 2021 
 

                                                                                                                   Page  104 

 
208  TOWN MAYOR’S ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 

Councillor F Kharawala noted it was likely to be another tricky year ahead with the 
continuing impact of the Covid-19 pandemic, but hoped she could rely on fellow 
Councillors for support in the coming months.   
 

209  ELECTION OF VICE CHAIRMAN (DEPUTY TOWN MAYOR)  
 
It was proposed and seconded that Councillor T Morris be appointed Vice Chairman 
(Deputy Town Mayor) of the Town Council for the municipal year 2021-2022. There 
were no further nominations.   

 
RESOLVED to appoint Councillor T Morris Vice Chairman (Deputy Town 
Mayor) of the Leighton-Linslade Town Council for the municipal year 2021-
2022.  
 

210 DECLARATION OF ACCEPTANCE OF OFFICE  
 

Councillor T Morris made the statutory declaration of acceptance of office of Deputy 
Town Mayor for the municipal year 2021-2022. 
 

211   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 

 Apologies for absence had been received from Councillor B Spurr. 

212  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

Members were asked to declare any interests, and the nature of those interests, 
that they might have in any of the items under consideration at the meeting. 
 
It was noted that many councillors had some involvement with the organisations 
requesting grant funding and that councillors were also appointed as Town Council 
representatives to those organisations. Councillor P Snelling declared himself a 
volunteer with the Greensand Trust and Councillor D Bowater a member of the 
Rotary Club of Leighton-Linslade. Councillor V Harvey declared herself a member 
of South Bedfordshire Friends of the Earth and would abstain from voting on their 
general grant application. Councillor G Perham declared that he had given one 
grant applicant (Friends of Tiddenfoot Waterside Park) grant funding through the 
Central Bedfordshire ward councillor grant scheme.  
 
No pecuniary interests were declared and no dispensations had been requested.  
 

213 LEADER OF THE COUNCIL 
 

It was proposed and seconded that Councillor S Jones be appointed Leader of the 
Town Council for the municipal year 2021-2022.  There were no further 
nominations. 

 

Page 12



Council Meeting                                                         4 MAY 2021 
 

                                                                                                                   Page  105 

RESOLVED to appoint Councillor S Jones Leader of the Town Council for the 
municipal year 2021-2022. 
 

214 GROUP LEADERS  
 
It was announced that Councillor S Jones would be Leader of the Conservative 
group and that Councillor A Dodwell would be deputy. 
 
Councillor R Goodchild advised that the Liberal Democrat Group would not be 
making announcements until after the by-election in St. George’s ward on 6 May.  

 
215  GROUP LEADERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 

Councillor S Jones spoke of his disappointment to be having to use a delegated 
decision making process again, following the High Court ruling of last week that 
local councils could not continue to hold remote meetings after 6 May 2021. He 
noted that Andrew Selous MP and Robert Jenrick MP had expressed equal 
disappointment and frustration and that it was acknowledged that the problem 
particularly affected larger parish councils, which could not easily meet in person 
while accommodating Covid risk mitigation measures such as social distancing.  
 
Councillor R Goodchild spoke of his concern in respect of an incident which had 
taken place in the town the week previously, involving a firearm. He advised he 
would continue to work collaboratively with the Leader of the Council on policing 
matters and would continue to seek appropriate policing resources for the largest 
town in the area. 

  
216 QUESTIONS 
 

(a)  There were no questions from members of the public. 
 

(b) A question had been received and circulated in advance of the meeting from 
Councillors S Jones and R Goodchild, as follows: 

Could the Town Clerk update us on any progress in lobbying by many Local 
Authorities for the continuation of virtual meetings and can he write to Andrew 
Selous MP, Robert Jenrick MP and the Rt Hon Jacob Rees Mogg (Leader of the 
House of Commons) expressing the views of this Council namely:- 
 
1. Following the introduction of The Local Authorities and Crime Panels 

(Coronavirus)(Flexibility of Meetings)(England and Wales) Regulations 2020 
last April, the Town Council has successfully managed to resume its normal 
cycle of council and committee meetings using the technology available to meet 
digitally. This has allowed business to be successfully conducted without the 
need for face-to-face meetings and has also facilitated greater engagement with 
our residents.  

 
2. Following the High Court Ruling the above legislation will end on 7 May 2021 

unless primary legislation is enacted to permit virtual and hybrid meetings as is 
the case for Parliament at Westminster.  

Page 13



Council Meeting                                                         4 MAY 2021 
 

                                                                                                                   Page  106 

 
3. At a time where many people are continuing to work from home, with the 

advantage this affords both environmentally by reducing travel and in terms of 
working environment, this Council calls upon the Government to expedite the 
allocation of parliamentary time to allow for either an extension of the above 
regulations, an appropriate amendment to the 1972 Local Government Act or 
new primary legislation to allow Local Authorities to continue with virtual 
meetings where this is appropriate. 

 
Whilst no dissent was expressed, it was felt that the question was more of a Motion. 
It was agreed that the Town Clerk would seek Member approval by email for the 
proposed actions, as well as for authority to submit a formal response on behalf of 
the Council to the current Government call for evidence in respect of local council 
meetings.  

 
217 COMMITTEE STRUCTURE, TERMS OF REFERENCE AND SCHEME OF 

DELEGATION  
 

Council received the existing Committee structure, the Terms of Reference for the 
four Town Council standing Committees and the Scheme of Delegation.  

RESOLVED to approve the Committee structure, standing Committee Terms 
of Reference and the Scheme of Delegation. 
 
RESOLVED to continue with existing memberships and chairmanships of 
committees and sub committees, plus existing appointments to outside 
bodies, until the next Council meeting.  
 

218 PARTNERSHIP COMMITTEE  
 

 RESOLVED to continue with the existing membership of the Partnership 
Committee until the next Council meeting. 

 
219 TOWN COUNCIL STANDING ORDERS  
 

Proposed amendments to Standing Orders, as recommended by the Standing 
Orders Task and Finish Group and subsequently by the Policy and Finance 
Committee, were proposed by Councillor M Freeman and seconded by Councillor 
R Berry. The motion was carried unanimously.  
 
RESOLVED to approve the proposed amendments to Town Council Standing 
Orders.  

  
220 SAFEGUARDING CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE POLICY 

Following agreement by the Policy and Finance Committee at its meeting on 29 
March that review of this policy was a priority, best practice guidance had been 
reviewed and proposed amendments to the policy circulated for consideration.  
 
RESOLVED to approve the Safeguarding Children and Young People Policy.  

 

Page 14



Council Meeting                                                         4 MAY 2021 
 

                                                                                                                   Page  107 

 
221 GRANTS  

 

(a) General Grants 
 

The Council was advised that the annual budget for General Grants was £10,000 
and that seven applications totalling under £3,500 had been received. A summary 
of grant applications was circulated for consideration. 
 
It was proposed and seconded that six applications be approved, with the seventh 
referred on to the Arts Forum. The motion was carried (18 in favour, 1 abstention). 
 
RESOLVED to refer the application from Heath Band to the Leighton-Linslade 
Arts Forum.  

RESOLVED to approve General Grant funding amounting to £2,831.84 as 
follows, subject to all applicants having met the required criteria by providing 
the required documentation: 

 

Organisation Purpose of General Grant Amount 

Friends of Tiddenfoot 
Waterside Park 

To replace Hazel Hurdles damaged 
by flooding 

£500 

South Bedfordshire 
Friends of the Earth 

To purchase litter picking equipment 
for use by volunteers 

£474.84 

Buzzcycles To purchase a gazebo to provide Dr 
Bike services 

£380 

Challenging Behaviour 
Counselling 

To provide five “wild days” 
workshops for children aged 3-14 

£500 

Leighton Buzzard 
Mencap 

To purchase two gazebos to allow a 
support group to meet outdoors 

£477 

Phoenix Explorer 
Scouts 

To purchase tents for use by 14-18 
year olds for scouting and Duke of 
Edinburgh scheme expeditions 

£500 

 
(b) Guaranteed Grants 

 
Council received a summary of the 15 Guaranteed Grant recipients, following award 
of the grants in May 2020. Whilst grants were for a four-year term, recipients were 
required to submit an annual report on expenditure as well as annual accounts each 
year, before the next tranche of funding could be released. The reports received 
were circulated to Council and accounts were available to view on request. 
 
RESOLVED to approve the release of 2021-22 Guaranteed Grant funding to: 
Leighton-Linslade Arts Forum, Autism Bedfordshire, Buzzer Buses Dial-a-
Ride, Cruse Bereavement Care, Freddie and Friends Sunshine Stop CIC, 
Leighton-Linslade Carnival, The Greensand Trust, Keech Hospice Care, 
Home-Start Central Bedfordshire, Macmillan Cancer Support, Meadow Way 
Community Association, Rotary Club Yes We Can programme, Leighton-
Linslade and District Sports Council and the Town Twinning Forum.   

Page 15



Council Meeting                                                         4 MAY 2021 
 

                                                                                                                   Page  108 

222     WELCOME BACK FUND  
 

Council received correspondence from Central Bedfordshire Council in respect of 
the Government Welcome Bank fund. Queries were raised regarding whether 
monies could only be spent on the immediate town centre area and whether funding 
was likely to be forthcoming faster for certain types of schemes than others. This 
would need to be clarified by the local authority. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
- To receive correspondence from Central Bedfordshire Council in 
respect of the Welcome Bank Fund. 
- To hold an informal councillor workshop on Monday, 10 May at 7:30pm 
to discuss potential uses of funding. 
- That formal ratification of discussion on 10 May take place thereafter 
by delegation to the proper Officer with email approval from Councillors, in 
accordance with the decision making procedure agreed by Council, in order 
that ideas may be submitted to Central Bedfordshire Council before the 
deadline date of 28 May 2021.  
 

223  FINANCIAL BANKING ARRANGMENTS  
 

Council received a report regarding the investment of the annual precept and 
banking arrangements throughout the year. 
 
RESOLVED:  

a. To transfer the annual precept (which is paid in two instalments, first in 
April 2021 and second in September 2021) from the NatWest Business 
Reserve Account to the existing Nationwide Instant Access Saver 
Account currently paying 0.05%.  

 
b. To endorse that funds be drawn down from the Nationwide Instant 

Access Saver Account and transferred to the NatWest Business 
Reserve Account to fund the Monthly expenditure, as and when 
required throughout the year.  
 

c. That the arrangements above be reviewed upon receipt of the first 
tranche of the precept for 2022/23.  

 
224  EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 
 

RESOLVED that, under the Public Bodies (Admissions to Meetings) Act 1960, 
the public be excluded on the grounds of the confidential nature of the 
business about to be transacted which involves the likely disclosure of 
exempt information. The public and press to withdraw from the meeting 
during consideration of detailed discussion regarding:   Community Action 
Bedfordshire and appointment of planning consultant. 
 
 

Page 16



Council Meeting                                                         4 MAY 2021 
 

                                                                                                                   Page  109 

225   COMMUNITY ACTION BEDFORDSHIRE 
 

Council received correspondence from Community Action Bedfordshire in respect 
of its Guaranteed Grant funding to support the voluntary sector, as well as the 
funding received specifically for the Jazz Up Your Life tea dance programme. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 

(i) To support the transfer of the balance of the Jazz Up Your Life grant 
funding (£1,145.72) from Community Action Bedfordshire to 
Bedfordshire Rural Communities Charity (BRCC) for delivery of the 
three remaining dances once Covid-19 restrictions permit these to 
go ahead. 

(ii) To support the transfer of Guaranteed Grant funding for 2021-22 
until 2023-24 from Community Action Bedfordshire to Bedfordshire 
Rural Communities Charity (BRCC) to fund the promotion, 
development and support of the Leighton-Linslade Timebank.  

(iii) To release 2021-2022 grant funding to BRCC upon receipt of their 
constitution and account details.  

(iv) To write to John Gelder and to thank him for his longstanding and 
exceptional service to the community of Leighton-Linslade.  

 226  APPOINTMENT OF PLANNING CONSULTANT 
 
Council noted that consideration of expressions of interest submitted by a number 
of planning consultants had been undertaken by the Policy and Finance Committee 
at its meeting held on 19 April 2021.  Subsequently, informal sessions had taken 
place with two consultants. On being proposed and seconded, it was unanimously 
agreed to appoint one of the consultants. 
 
RESOLVED to appoint O’Neill Homer to undertake initial scoping work on the 
possible creation of a Neighbourhood Plan or other appropriate policy 
document to better inform parish wide improvements and to report back to 
the Policy and Finance Committee.  
 
 

The meeting closed 2042 hours.  
 
I HEREBY CONFIRM THAT THE FOREGOING IS A CORRECT AND ACCURATE 
RECORD OF THE MEETING HELD ON  4 MAY 2021. 
 
 
 
 
Chair         28 JUNE 2021 
                                    

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 18



 
 
 
 
 
 
Policy and Finance Committee             

 
Date: 21 June 2021 
 
Title: Impact of the Pandemic Crisis on Town Council Finances  

 
Purpose of the Report: To provide Members with an update position on the 

way the pandemic has impacted Town Council 
Finances.   

 
Contact Officer:                Mark Saccoccio - Town Clerk 
  Sarah Sandiford – Deputy Town Clerk  
    Clare Cummins – Finance Officer   
 

Corporate 
Objective/s 

 To consolidate processes and procedures, ensuring 
operational efficiency and a structure which will 
underpin future service delivery by the Town Council. 

Implications:   

Financial Yes To provide Members with an update position in 
respects of the financial situation and to consider the 
potential creation of an earmarked reserve for the 
purposes of future proofing the White House building 
and other town council assets.  

Operational/Service 
delivery 

Yes The proposal would make allow considerable 
improvements to be made to accommodation to the 
benefit of officers and members alike.  

 
1. RECOMMENDATIONS 
  

Should the Policy and Finance Committee be minded:- 
 
1.1 To note the report 
 
1.2 To endorse the creation of a Facilities Improvements Earmarked Reserve 

of £137,754 for the purposes of making town council facilities more resilient 
in the wake of the pandemic and where considered appropriate to consider 
introducing measures to meet the town council’s environmental ambitions.  

 
1.3 To agree to the draw down of a maximum of £3,000 from the Facilities 

Improvements Earmarked Reserve to enable any covid compliant changes 
to be made when considered appropriate and necessary to do so.  

 
 
 
 
 

Page 19

Agenda Item 7



  

Page 2 of 3   

 

2 BACKGROUND  
 
2.1 The purpose of this report is to provide Members with a position on the way the 

pandemic has affected Town Council Finances for the financial year 2020-21. It 
also seeks direction on the creation of a £137,754 earmarked reserve whose 
purpose is to make town council operations more resilient in the wake of the 
pandemic and where considered appropriate, to meet the town council’s 
environmental ambitions.  
 

2.2 Since the introduction of lockdown measures on 16th March 2020, income 
generating activities have in some way been compromised. Except for cemetery 
activities, the use of sports pitches, venue hire, events and the market function 
have all been affected to the point where the agreed budget for the financial year 
2020-21 was unlikely to be realised (an income target of £314,925 was set which 
represents 12.2% of a total expenditure of £2,580,871).  
 

2.3 With news of a potential pandemic sweeping across the nation, a decision was 
taken in January 2020 that revenue spend across all service areas would halt 
immediately. The fear of the unknown and the propensity that future income 
generating opportunities would be compromised were the drivers for this action.   
 

2.4 Despite the pandemic and the disruption caused, the legal responsibility in 
completing the financial year end and submission of the annual return remained. 
At its meeting held 27th July 2020, Council resolved thereafter to endorse the 
creation of an Earmarked Reserve from the 2019-2020 revenue underspend to 
the sum of £128,010. Its purpose to meet the anticipated shortfall in income 
caused by the pandemic (named precept support fund). Based on the worst-case 
scenario, the Town Council had the potential to lose a total of £218,224.92 in 
income generating activities (except for the cemetery functions that continued). 
To meet the worst-case scenario, Council resolved that any shortfall be met from 
general reserves. 
 

3.0 UPDATE 
 
3.1 Since the summer of 2020, the easing of certain lockdown measures has meant 

the ability for a limited number of events and activities to take place (subject to 
lockdown restrictions being adhered to). In turn, this has been of benefit to the 
Town Council by allowing a certain number of income-generating activities to 
resume albeit on a more modest scale. For example, essential market traders 
who benefitted from fees being waived are now paying for their pitch fees. Room 
hires for certain small-scale activities has also been able to resume.   

 
 Expenditure:  
3.2 Expenditure has also fallen in certain budget codes because of reduced activity 

directly attributable to the current situation. Examples include expenditure on 
sports materials which has seen anticipated expenditure fall by 37% and printing 
and stationery by 48%. Moreover, certain planned projects were not realised 
thereby representing expenditure savings also.  

 
  
 

Page 20



  

Page 3 of 3   

 

Out turn:  
3.3 Based on the unaudited income and expenditure account (as at 31st March 2021), 

the Town Council has a net surplus (outturn) of £137,754. Despite the pessimistic 
forecast of July 2020, a positive outturn is quite remarkable. The ability to 
generate a modest income £49,515 (including £7,359 interest and not including 
cemetery income of £107,559) is pleasing. Of the earmarked reserve (precept 
support fund £128,010), a total of £53,579 was used to contribute toward the 
income deficit leaving a positive balance of £74,431 (920/9065) which was 
approved at Council on 25 January 2021 to support this year’s precept. 

 
3.4 Subject to Member endorsement, a Facilities Improvements Earmarked Reserve 

(budget code yet to be created) seeks ratification in accordance with 
recommendation 1.2 of this report. Using the positive balance of £137,754, its 
purpose is to make a meaningful contribution toward improving working and 
operational conditions at the White House and town council owned assets 
thereby making operations more resilient in the wake of the pandemic. In 
addition, the reserve will be used to improve environmental efficiency within 
buildings also.  

 
a) The office furniture as well as the Chamber furniture by virtue of its unwieldy 

and bulky size is not conducive to modern methods of working. Furthermore, 
room capacity is seriously compromised because of bulky furniture.  

b) The IT ports within the main office require reconfiguration  
c) The potential investment in technology to allow hybrid meetings to take place 

irrespective of a government position on hybrid meetings. The ability to gather 
and engage with a remote speaker is an attractive prospect within or outside 
of a formal meeting.  

d) To allow for any changes deemed either necessary or advantageous in 
meeting the Town Council’s equalities and emerging accessibility policies 
either at the White House and/or town council owned assets.  

e) To make building more environmentally efficient.  
 
 

4.0 CONCLUSIONS  
 
4.1 Over the past 15 months, the Town Council has demonstrated a level of 

resilience when confronted with the unknown that is the pandemic. In this time, 
it has adapted operationally, provided help and support to those in need and 
finally, was able to carry on delivering those services allowable.  A remarkable 
achievement given that remote working was never considered a model 
conducive to the way a parish council should operate.  

 
 
End.  
 

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 22



Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 24



Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 26



RECORD OF APPROVED DECISIONS 

COUNCIL 

 

Date 
requested 

Subject Specific agreed decision Agreed by Cllrs 

12 May 
2021 

Remote meetings Agreement for Town Clerk to write to MPs and submit 
evidence on behalf of LLTC to Government consultation 

12 in favour and 1 
abstention 

21 May 
2021 

Welcome Back Fund To submit a project plan and application for Welcome Back 
Funding to Central Bedfordshire Council  

14 in favour 

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

 

P
age 27

A
genda Item

 8



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 28



 
 
 
 
 

COUNCIL      
 

Date:  28 June 2021   

 

Title:   I.T. expenditure 

 

Purpose of the Report:  
To consider a request for expenditure from Earmarked Reserves.  

 

Contact Officer:  
Sarah Sandiford, Head of Democratic and Central Services 
 

 

Corporate Objective/s LLTC Five Year Plan – Objectives 1 (To regularly 
review how we communicate and seek to embrace 
new technologies) & 2 (To continue to aim towards a 
paperless office).  

Implications:   

Financial Yes Within available earmarked 
reserve funds as set out in the 
report.  

Human Resources No  

Operational/Service 
delivery 

Yes To ensure the council can 
operate effectively.  

Procedural/Legal No  

Risk/Health and Safety No  

Environmental Aims Yes To reduce printing.  

 
 

1 RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
Should members be minded, the proposals are: 
 

1.1 To approve additional expenditure of £1,100 from the Professional Fees 
earmarked reserve (£14,360 available) for the installation costs for the new 
telephone system. 

 

1.2 To approve expenditure of £500 from the I.T./Modern.gov earmarked reserve 
(£3,360 available) for the purchase of additional monitors.  

 
 
 
 

Page 29

Agenda Item 9



 
  
2 TELECOMS 

 

2.1 At its meeting held 18 January 2021, the Policy & Finance Committee agreed 
to the transfer to a new telecoms supplier and to the funding of installation/user training 
costs of £500 from the Professional Fees earmarked reserve (Minute reference 
189/PF).   
 
2.2 The agreement for the transfer has not yet been signed due to ongoing issues 
with internet connection at TACTIC which have taken some months to address with 
the current provider.  
 
2.3 We are now in a position to move forward but due to a change in pricing 
structure, the user training/installation costs have increased. An initial fee of £2,350 
has now been negotiated down to £1,600.  
 
2.4 Council is asked for approval to pay these additional, one-off costs from the 
same Professional Fees earmarked reserve (£14,360 currently available).  

 
 

3 MONITORS 

 

3.1 Several officers have requested an additional monitor. This proves very useful 
when needing to compare information in two different documents or programmes at 
the same time. The ability to use two screens will reduce the need for staff to print 
information onto paper and is therefore in accordance with the Council’s environmental 
ambitions.  
 
3.2 As there is no scope for additional equipment purchase in the annual I.T. 
revenue budget, Council is asked for approval to fund the purchase of 5 additional 
monitors from the I.T./Modern.gov earmarked reserve (£3,360 available).  

 
 
 
End.  

Page 30



P
age 31

A
genda Item

 10



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 32



Appointment of Town Councillors to Outside Bodies 
2020-2021 

 

Organisation Town Council Representative(s)  
Arts Forum Gordon Perham 

Autism Beds Karen Cursons 

Buzzer Bus (Dial a Ride) Ltd Russ Goodchild 

Carnival Committee  

Citizens’ Advice Bureau Karen Cursons, 
Farzana Kharawala 

Cruse Bereavement Care Bedfordshire Sheona Hemmings 

Freddie and Friends Sunshine Stop Amanda Dodwell 

Friends of Leighton-Linslade in Bloom Gordon Perham 

Home-Start Central Bedfordshire Sheona Hemmings 

Keech Hospice Care Farzana Kharawala, Karen Cursons 

LB First Mark Freeman 
Russ Goodchild 

LB Narrow Gauge Railway Amanda Dodwell, Ray Berry 

Leighton-Linslade Senior Citizens Association 
(“LINK”) 

Farzana Kharawala 
 

Macmillan Cancer Support (Leighton-Linslade 
Fundraising Group) 

Ray Berry 

Meadow Way Community Association Amanda Dodwell 

Music Centre Partnership Steve Owen 
Gordon Perham 

Music Education Hub Steering Committee Steve Owen 

National Association of Local Councils/Bedfordshire 
Association of Town and Parish Councils 

Karen Cursons 

Ouzel Valley Park Steering Group Tony Morris, Clive Palmer 
Steve Owen, Victoria Harvey 

People, Projects, Partnerships (P3) Victoria Harvey 

Rushmere Parishes Group Peter Snelling 
Victoria Harvey 

Sandpit Project   Tony Morris 
Victoria Harvey 

Sports Council Daniel Scott, Sheona Hemmings, Brian Spurr 

The Greensand Trust Tony Morris, Steve Owen 

Town Twinning Forum Clive Palmer, Gordon Perham 

Community Action Bedfordshire   
Beds Rural Communities Charity 

Mark Freeman 

Yes We Can  David Bowater 

 

Page 33

Agenda Item 11



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 34



Document is Restricted

Page 35

Agenda Item 16
By virtue of the Public Bodies (Admission to Meetings) Act 1960 s1 (2)



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 43

Agenda Item 17
By virtue of the Public Bodies (Admission to Meetings) Act 1960 s1 (2)



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
	210504 COUNCIL draft

	7 ANNUAL GOVERNANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY RETURN 2020-21
	Section1 - Annual Governance Statement 2020-21
	Section 2 - Accounting Statements 2020-21

	8 APPROVED DECISIONS 5 MAY - 27 JUNE 2021
	9 I.T. EXPENDITURE
	10 COMMITTEES
	11 APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES
	16 CONTRACTOR UPDATE
	17 PUBLIC CONVENIENCES CLEANING CONTRACT/TENDER

